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The Foley-Brower-Bo'hmer House is situated on a large wooded lot several 
blocks south of the central business district of St. Cloud. Formerly residential, 
the area in which the house is located has changed to a multi-use area because of 
the expansion of nearby St. Cloud State University.

The three storey brick residence was commissioned by lumberman-industrialist 
Timothy Foley in April of 1889. The architect was' A.E. Hussey. Construction began 
in May of that year under the direction of contractor J.S. McCleary of Minneapolis. 
The building was completed in February of 1890 at a total cost of $13,000.

Stylistically, the residence is representative of the brick mode of the 
Richardsonian Romanesque style, popular in Minnesota during the 1880s and 1890s. 
Set on a foundation of rusticated local St. Cloud grey granite, the primary 
materials of construction consist of Saint Louis red pressed brick, red sandstone 
for lintels, sills, and carved panels, and wood frame interior structural system. 
The plan is irregular; projecting bays and porches, gables with stone copings and 
carved finials, fluted chimneys, and a round tower with conical roof contribute 
to the picturesque quality of the design. Walls are punctuated with a large number 
of windows, a number of which are either stained glass or curved glass.

Four alterations are evident on the exterior. The major alteration was the 
removal of a full-front spindlework porch on the front of the house in approximately 
1945; the deck and brick column basis remain, however, as an open patio. One of 
the five chimneys was removed from the roofline with the sealing of one of the 
two fireplaces in the living room. A second-storey sleeping porch was added 
above the rear kitchen porch (west). Finally, the original slate roof has been 
replaced with asphalt composition shingles. With the exception of the removal of 
the front porch, however, these alterations are minor and have not altered the 
overall integrity of the design. The house has been excellently maintained.

On the interior, the first floor consists of a large hallway, living room, 
dining room, kitchen, and small bathroom. The hallway is finished in carved golden 
oak; a fireplace of brass and copper with oak mantel and tile hearth is situated 
in the northwest corner adjacent to the staircase. A double slicing door provides 
access to the living room from the hallway. This room is a large space created 
by the removal of a wall (and set of sliding doors) which formerly separated the 
parlor from the library. One of the fireplaces in the living room has been sealed 
and the mantel removed; the other fireplace retains its original mantel which is 
surmounted by an arched stained glass window. Woodwork is of cherry.

The dining room is finished in white oak and boasts an elaborate parquetry 
floor. This room also has an ornately carved mantel and stained glass windows. 
To the rear of the dining room is the kitchen area; this is also finished in oak. 
The former pantry has been converted into a bathroom.

(see continuation sheet)
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The second floor consists of five bedrooms arid a bathroom. Woodwork through­ 
out the second floor is of golden oak similar to that found in the hallway. Two 
staircases provide access to this floor. Two of the bedrooms have fireplaces.

The third floor is primarily devoted to a large attic with a finished floor 
which may have been intended for dancing or other social activities. A small room 
off the attic is designated as the maid's quarters.

In general, the Foley-Brower-Bohmer House is a well preserved example of the 
Richardsonian mansion-type house constructed during the later years of the 
nineteenth century in St. Cloud. Other such residences in the St. Cloud area 
have either been extensively altered in appearance or use or have been demolished. 
This residence is one of the last remaining examples of its type to continue 
as a private residence.
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The Foley-Brower-Bohmer House is an excellent example of the Richardsonian 
Romanesque mode of architectural design as applied to large-scale residences 
during the latter part of the nineteenth century. Constructed for Timothy Foley 
in 1889 according to designs by architect A.E. Hussey, this structure is the 
only Richardsonian residence in the St. Cloud area to retain a substantial degree 
of original design integrity and continue to function as a single-family private 
residence.

Timothy Foley was one of four brothers who controlled a substantial lumber 
industry and sizeable railway interests during the latter part of the nineteenth 
century. The Foley brothers operated mills in Foley (named for the family), 
St. Cloud, Foreston, and Milaca; they also formed a construction company which 
was integral in the development of railroad lines throughout central Minnesota 
and the northwest. The house in St. Cloud was occupied by Timothy Foley from 
1890 to 1895. After that date his brother, Thomas, occupied it until 1902.

In 1902, Ripley B. Brower, a prominent lawyer and politician in St. Cloud, 
purchased the house as his residence. He had opened a law office in, St* Cloud 
in 1891, was a Republican elected State Senator in 1898, which office he held 
until 1905, and was city attorney for St. Cloud from 1916 through 1928. He 
resided in the house until 1923.

In 1923, William J. Bohmer, proprietor of the Melrose Granite Company, 
purchased the house from Brower. The granite company, with headquarters in St. 
Cloud, was reputed in the 1920s to be one of the largest granite producing plants 
in the United States. In 1927, Bohmer became director of the American National 
Bank of St. Cloud. He established the Bohmer Investment Company in 1931, and was 
als.o a director of the St. Cloud Chamberf.efce Commerce.
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